TOWN OF HUDSON

Conservation Commission

William Collins, Chairman David Morin, Selectmen Liaison

12 School Street * Hudson, New Hampshire 03051 * Tel: 603-886-6008 * Fax: 603-594-1142

CONSERVATION COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA
September 9, 2024

The Town of Hudson Conservation Commission will hold its next meeting on September 9, 2024

at 7:00

RN RGN

III.

p.m. in the Buxton Meeting Room, located in Town Hall 12 School Street, Hudson, NH.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Alternates

Public Input Related to Non-Agenda Items

New Business:

a.- Conditional Use Permit Application — Subaru Expansion, 6 Executive Drive, Map
210, Lot 1 Input to Planning Board

b. Conditional Use Permit Application — Brox Industries, Wetland Dredge and Fill—
Hudson ConCom input to NHDES

Old Business:

a. Memo From E. Dhima — regarding improvements and access at Robinson Pond Beach
and Boat Ramp Areas

b. Memo(s) From E. Dhima- regarding Long Term Water Quality Plan for Robinson Pond
Other Business:

a. Pelham Road Trail Work Day(s) - moved to September 21% and 22,

b. Budget 2025/2026

c. Things to do List for 2024/2025

d. Picnic on the Pond Sept 7% Wrap up



Iv. Financial Status:

Current Report

V. Correspondence
a. Correspondence a: and al: Full Circle Forestry Permit
b. Correspondence b: Map Purchase

¢. Correspondence c: 2025 NHDES-W-07-021 Control Grant Application-Town of
Hudson,NH

VL Approval of Minutes:

a. Meeting Minutes — August 12, 2024

VIL Commissioner’s Comments:

Next Regular Meeting: Monday October 21, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.

William Collins, Chairman




TOWN OF HUDSON

Conservation Commission

William Collins, Chairman Dave Morin, Selectmen Liaison

12 School Street * Hudson, New Hampshire 03051 = Tel: 603-886-6008 * Fax: 603-816-1291
Date: September 9, 2024

Case: Granite Subaru Expansion
6 Executive Drive
Hudson, New Hampshire
Map 210, Lot 1 Zone: Business (B)

Note: This CUP is a revised application to a previously submitted Conditional Use
Permit Application reviewed by the HCC on April 11, 2022.

Description of work to be performed: The project entails construction of a paved vehicle storage
area and a vehicle display area along with a new Wet Pond basin for Stormwater treatment and
management. If built as proposed there will be a permanent wetland impact of 4,898 square feet
and a permanent wetland buffer impact of 36,991 square feet. Note: The Wetland Buffer impact is
slightly higher from the original amount of 26,829 (4/11/22) square feet due to the town’s adoption
of a 75 foot wetland buffer for non-residential use.

Conservation Members Stepping Down:

Alternates Seated:
Applicant Representative(s):

Motion to “Not Recommend”

moved to not recommend a favorable acceptance by the Planning Board for
the proposed Granite Subaru Expansion as proposed by the applicant’s representatives for the
following reasons.

Reason for not recommending: (i.e. Compliance to Regulations, degradation of wetland)
Motion second Motion Carried 5/0/0

Motion to “Recommend” is based on revised Grading, Drainage & Utility Plan sheet 4 of
11 showing a revision date of 7/11/24

moved to_recommend acceptance by the Hudson Planning Board of the
Conditional Use Permit application filed for the proposed “Granite Subaru Expansion” reference
Tax Map 210, Lot 1, and dated May 28, 2024. After application review and site visit, the Hudson
Conservation Commission finds that the use presented by the applicant comply with Hudson
Zoning Ordinance 334, Article IX- Wetland Conservation Overlay District, paragraphs 334-

Page 1 of 2



36(C) 2 and 334-37(1) (d) (e) and 334-37(2).Commission members concur that the proposed use
will not have a detrimental impact to remaining wetlands and wetland buffer area on the site if
constructed per revised Grading, Drainage& Utility plan, sheet 4 of 11 revision date 7/11/24.
This favorable acceptance is contingent upon Planning Board approval of the proposed plan and
with the Conservation Commission recommendations listed below.

1. During construction and restoration erosion control barriers shall be installed and
maintained to the satisfaction of the Town Engineer.

2. The Town Engineer or his representative shall be allowed to inspect the boundaries of
the wetland and wetland buffer areas during construction and report any finding to the
applicant and the Conservation Commission for remediation.

3. The commission recommends that a stipulation and or note be added to the final plan
set that states “Stockpiling of earthen materials is not allowed in the Wetland Buffer
Area”.

4. The commission recommends that a stipulation and or note be added to the final plan
set that states “The wetland buffer boundary shall be identified and marked prior to the
start of construction per Hudson Zoning Ordinance, Article IX §334-35 (E.)

5. The commission recommends that a stipulation and or note be added to the final plan
set that states “ No Cut/No Disturb” signage shall be installed along the wetland buffer
boundary prior to issuing Certificates of Occupancy per Hudson Zoning Ordinance,
Article IX §334-35 (E.)

6. The commission recommends that a stipulation and or note be added to the final plan
set that states “Snow storage shall not be allowed in any wetland buffer area.”

7. The commission recommends that the drive isle along the proposed display area be
reduced from twenty-two (22) feet in width to twenty (20) feet in width

8. This motion is based on the plan(s) submitted by the applicant. It is recommended that

if additional impacts are required the plan be returned to the Conservation
Commission for further review.

Motion second Motion Carried 0/0¢/0

William Collins

William Collins
HCC Chairman

A copy of this recommendation should be stapled to the CUP application and forward it to
the Town Planning Office for inclusion in the Planning Board Member Packets.

Page 2 of 2



TOWN OF HUDSON

Conservation Commission

William Collins, Chairman Dave Morin, Selectmen Liaison

12 School Street = Hudson, New Hampshire 03051 * Tel: 603-886-6008 * Fax: 603-816-1291

Date: April 11, 2022

1‘ \
Case: Granite Subaru Expansion, 6 Executive Drive, Wetland and Wetland Buffer Impact
Hudson, New Hampshire AR
Map 210, Lot 1 ST
Zone: Business (B) e

Description of work to be performed: The prOJect entails construetlon of a paved vehicle
storage area and a vehicle display area along w1th a new storm water detentlon basin. If built as
proposed there will be a permanent, wetland nnpact 0f 5,986" square feet and. a ‘permanent wetland
buffer impact of 26,829 square feet . ,;_"

Conservation Members Stepping D'o_wr;: "

o R T EUN
Alternates Seated e o SN P
',., wk‘ ", \‘€ N “f . = . S -
3!“ " ’_u Y '-\j"
Applicant Representatlve(s) S
f : .E \\ "\
Motion to “Not Recommend” L B ’ .
P - 8
R ~ !

- T
- T, “

o moved to not recommend a favorable acceptance by the Planning Board for

the proposed Granite Subaru Expansmn as proposed by the applicant’s representatives for the
following reasons

Reason for notr_ecoyr\nmendiﬁgsz (i.e. Compliance to Regulations, degradation of wetland)

Motion second Motion Carried 5/0/0

Motion to “Recommend”

Page 1 of 3



moved to_recommend acceptance by the Hudson Planning Board of the
Conditional Use Permit application filed for the proposed “Granite Subaru Expansion” reference
Tax Map 210, Lot 1, and dated February 15, 2022. After application review and site visit, the
Hudson Conservation Commission finds that the use presented by the applicant comply with
Hudson Zoning Ordinance 334, Article IX- Wetland Conservation Overlay District, paragraphs
334-36(C) 2 and 334-37(1) and (2).Commission members concur that the proposed use will not
have a detrimental impact to remaining wetlands and wetland buffer area. This favorable
acceptance is contingent upon Planning Board approval of the proposed plan and with the
Conservation Commission recommendations listed belovg, S

‘f‘ v"
W o

1. During construction and restoration eroswn control bamers shall be installed and
maintained to the satisfaction of the Town Englneer L
2. The Town Engineer or his representatlve shall be allowed to inspect the boundaries of
the wetland and wetland buffer areas during construetlon and report any finding to the
applicant and the Conservatxon Cormmssmn for remedlatxon ™,
S M . .
3. The commission recommends thata stlpulatlon and or note be added to the final plan
set that states “Stockplhng of constructlon matenals is not allowed in the Wetland
Buffer Area” & » L
‘Je' - - - o = ‘~ “' \
4. The comm18810n recommends that a stlpulatlon and or note be added to the final plan
set that states “Theé wetland buffer boundary shall be identified and marked prior to the
start of constructlon per Hudson Zomng Ordinance, Article IX §334-35 (E.)

\

5. Thec comm1ss1on recommends that a stlpulatlon and or note be added to the final plan
.~ set that states “ No Cut/No Dlsturb” sxgnage shall be installed along the wetland buffer
. boundary” pnor to 1ssu1ng Certificates of Occupancy per Hudson Zoning Ordinance,

Article IX §334 35(E)

6. The commission recommends that a stipulation and or note be added to the ﬁnal plan
set that- states “Snow storage shall not be allowed in any wetland buffer area.’

7. The com'mjssio'n r_eeommends that a stipulation and or note be added to the final plan
set that states “Green SnowPro Certified Contractors shall be used to manage snow
control and clearing of the site”.

8. The commission recommends that the drive isle along the proposed display area be
reduced from twenty-two (22) feet in width to twenty (20) feet in width

9. This motion is based on the plan(s) submitted by the applicant. It is recommended that

if additional impacts are required the plan be returned to the Conservation
Commission for further review.

Page 2 of 3



10. Because the is a low use area with minimum vehicle movement reducing the driveway
widths from 22 feet to 20 feet will have a net reduction in 270 square feet of

impervious surface and A reduction of the driveways along the

Motion second Sandra Rumbaugh Motion Carried 5/0/0

William Collins

William Collins o
HCC Chairman e R

A N
A copy of this recommendation should be stapled to the CUP application and forward it to
the Town Planning Office for inclusion 'in,‘the\ Planning Board Member Packets.

= Y

Al ¢
- .
st
« B
3 . -
4
'\\ I " “nh_ -
o ?
oo e N
5 X ~
.. . N
o 3 oo N T
% . - .~ * « .,
NN “ %, ;
p N W # S o
o - . ‘v\,‘ K s ..
s
f i N ~
kN i % o
N [ - sr’
. : o
. . H AT
. N
kS
o ~ Y
”
. - £
o -
. - " - N W
. - .
“ - #

Page3 of 3



TOWN OF HUDSON

Engineering Department

12 School Street  *  Hudson, New Hampshire 03051  * Tel: 603-886-6008 * Fax: 603-816-1291

TO: Conservation Commission

FROM: Elvis Dhima, P.E., Town Engineer

DATE: August 19,2024

RE: NH State Parks Land & Water Conservation Fund Requestl Grant

The New Hampshire Department of State Parks has funds available which can be utilized
for a Robinson Pond recreational boat launch and swimming beach area. In addition, these

projects will provide credit to the Town towards our MS4 permitting requirements, which
are due in 2026.

Currently, the Conservation Commission is spearheading the efforts for the design and
permitting of these projects. The grant amount could be up to one million dollars, with a
50% cost match from the Town, which will require Town approval in March 2025. The
funds will be used for the construction phase of the boat Jaunch and swimming beach area,
while supporting our MS4 permit obligations.

At this time, the Robinson Pond boat lunch area is open to the public, while the beach area
is restricted to the residents only. The grant application is due this November and the grant
has a higher probability of approval if it’s combined as one project and both areas are open
to the public. Since the beach area is currently only open to Hudson residents, an
ordinance change is required to open it to everyone. This change of restriction would make
us eligible for the necessary funds for much needed improvements now and in the future.

The Conservation Commission is currently vested in the improvements of this pond and
design of the boat launch and beach area, so our recommendation to the Board of
Selectmen about this matter is warranted.

First Motion:
To support and recommend to the Board of Selectmen the grant application for the
improvements for the boat lunch and the beach area.

Second Motion:
To support and recommend to Board of Selectmen the grant application for the
improvements for the boat lunch only.

C:\Users\dstickney\_AppData\Local\Microsoﬂ\Windows\INetcaChe\COIltent.Outh0k\YIU4J DO3\OId
Business  Con Com Memo.doc



Dhima, Elvis

From: Gegas, Vasilios (Bill) <vasilios.n.gegas@dncr.nh.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, August 13, 2024 3:55 PM

To: . Gegas, Vasilios (Bill)
Cc; Gegas, Vasilios (Bill)

Subject: LWCF Grant Round 35 Intent Reviews/inspections Complete

BEXTERNAL‘:‘ Do not open attachments or click links unless you recognize and trust the sender.

Greetings,

Your intent-to-apply to Grant Round 35 of the Land and Water Conservation Fund, Local Assistance Program has been
reviewed and a pre-application inspection of the project site has been completed.

We are pleased to inform you that your project has met the minimum requirements for program eligibility. You will be
receiving an invitation to apply shortly, after some updates are made to the online application platform. Within the
application you will receive further instructions, web-forms, and the process timeline. :

Save the following date/time for a mandatory application workshop webinar: 9am-noon, Thursday, September 12,
2024. The focus will be on technical requirements for narratives and attachments. At least one official representative from
your city or town must register and participate. Invited applicants that do not participate will be automatically disqualified
and deferred to subsequent grant rounds. Webinar registration information and link will be provided shortly.

Receiving an invitation to apply does not imply that a determination has been made by this office regarding the degree to
which your final application will be sufficiently complete for review and scoring. If essential elements are missing at the
time of submittal (application deadline date to be determined) your application will be rejected from Grant Round 35 and
returned to you for possible re-submittal under subsequent grant rounds.

Please remember that for projects to be considered viable under this grant round elements of the pre-planning and design
phases should already be in-progress if not completed including but not limited to concept plans and/or final plans, public
comments, deed and title research, property boundary determination/affirmation, environmental reviews, environmental
permitting, historic resource reviews, project timelines, and costs estimates. You should also remember that pre-
application planning, engineering, and architectural costs are eligible to be included within your application budget.

New for Grant Round 35 a certificate of authority will be required for all applications, attesting that the governing board
or council formally resolved for the designated project manager to submit the application on behalf of the municipality.

Thank you for your patience through this process. Please confirm that you have received this message.
If you have any questions in the meantime, please let me know.
Sincerely

Bill Gegas .

LWCF Grants Coordinator y
Bureau of Community Recreation

Division of Parks & Recreation

N.H. Department of Natural and Cultural Resources

172 Pembroke Road

Concord, NH 03301-5767

tel: 603-271-3035

—

vasilios.n.gegas@dnc[.nh.gov

nhstateparks.org
dncr.nh.gov




Engineers | Scientists | Planners | Designers ) H H Zati on
2 Bedfaord Farms Drive, Suite 200, Bedford, New Hampshire 03110 CIIent AUthorI

P 603.391.3500 F 603.518.7495  www.vhb.com

K New Contract Date: August 30, 2024
O Amendment No. Project No. 82388.24
Project Name: Grant Application Support

Cost Estimate

To: Elvis Dhima, P.E. Amendment Contract Total
Town of Hudson Labor $19,975
12 School Street Expenses Included
Hudson, NH, 03051 TOTAL — $19,975
Email: edhima@hudsonnh.gov B Lump Sum O Time & Expenses
O Cost + Fixed Fee B Labor Multiplier
Phone No:  603-886-6008 Estimated Date of Completion: January 2025

PROJECT BACKGROUND

As requested by the Town of Hudson, VHB will support the Town with preparation of supporting documentation for
a grant application to the National Parks Service (NPS) Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) grant program
for outdoor recreation and public access improvements at the municipal boat launch and beach at 52 Robinson
Road in Hudson, New Hampshire (Site). The LWCF program is managed by the New Hampshire Department of
Natural and Cultural Resources (DNCR) Division of Parks and Recreation, Bureau of Community Recreation. Pending
DNCR site visit(s) and review of the proposed project, DNCR may invite the Town to submit a full LWCF application.
DNCR will rank submitted applications in a competitive selection process. Selected projects would be sponsored by
DNCR in an application to the NPS. Should the project be selected to proceed by DNCR and approved by NPS,
grant funding is expected to be available no sooner than January 2026.

The Town of Hudson Engineering Department submitted a required LWCF Intent-to-Apply form to DNCR in June
2024, demonstrating the Town’s intent to apply for LWCF cost-share grant funding under grant round 35 to support
construction of renovations at the Robinson Pond boat launch and beach. The project is currently undergoing final
engineering design and permitting by VHB under a separate agreement with the Town (VHB Project Number
53023.01), which has been authorized and funded by the Town of Hudson Conservation Commission. The project is
expected to be eligible for grant funding as an LWCF Development project, which includes the renovation of
existing outdoor recreation support facilities. The LWCF grant requires a 1:1 match. To be eligible for LWCF grant
funding, the Town must commit to funding a minimum of 50% of the overall project costs. LWCF may consider
project-related costs which the Town incurred up to three years prior to the grant award as eligible for match. VHB
anticipates the final design and engineering (53023.01), and this project (53023.02) may both be considered eligible
by the LWCF program to use towards the Town's contribution of matching funds.

SCOPE OF WORK

VHB will assist the Town of Hudson with preparing and compiling LWCF grant submission materials, some of which
will be prepared by VHB under separate projects. Submission requirements and additional coordination which is not
included within those projects are described below.

Under this scope of work, VHB will also provide additional grant application support to the Town during
coordination with the Nashua Regional Planning Commission (NRPC) to assist NRPC's application to NHDES for a
Clean Water Act Section 604(b) watershed planning grant to support watershed restoration activities for Robinson
Pond.

TS T N T I P T B L O N T O B T [T N R T Y] &



Ref: 82388.24 Gt

August 30, 2024 gﬁ’hb.

Page 2

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

PUBLIC MEETINGS & COORDINATION

VHB will support the Town during anticipated meeting and required coordination with the DNCR. VHB will
attend a mandatory DNCR pre-application workshop webinar, scheduled for September 12, 2024. To support
the public engagement process and necessary public meetings for project approvals, VHB will attend up to a
total of four in-person Town meetings, including Select Board or Conservation Commission meetings. VHB
will collect and organize Town meeting agendas and minutes from the Town's website, to be referenced
while developing the LWCF grant application.

Meetings: Up to four in-person meetings in Hudson with VHB Project Manager. One virtual webinar,

Deliverables: None anticipated.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

The LWCF application wili require a description of the project’s public benefit and the extent of public
engagement in the development of the LWCF proposal. To support public engagement and enhance the
Town's grant application, VHB will develop digital and printed materials for public outreach and facilitate
public engagement opportunities. Using VHB plans, photographs, and illustrative representations of the
project site, VHB will create a public online story map website to summarize the project history, proposed
improvements, and sclicit public comments. VHB will deliver a shareable URL to the Town for posting to the
Town's website. The website will include a public opinion survey form to collect public comments during a
defined public comment period, to be determined by the Town. VHB will collect public comments and draft
responses in a summary memorandum. VHB will deliver a draft memorandum to the Town Engineer for
review and approval. VHB will address one round of comments from the Town Engineer and deliver a final
memorandum via email. To further support public outreach and engagement, VHB will develop a double-
sided 6"x9” postcard which VHB will mail to up to 50 households, including landowners adjacent to Robinson
Pond and landowners abutting the project site. The postcard will direct the public to the project website for
more information. VHB will print up to 100 postcards, up to 50 of which are expected to be mailed.
Remaining postcards will be delivered to the Town for public distribution at the Town Office.

Meetings: None anticipated.

Deliverables: One public project website with public opinion survey. One draft and one final summary
memorandum with public comments. One hundred (100) oversized (6"x9") double-sided color postcards.

NEPA SCREENING

As the Town will be requesting federal grant funding, the project will require a screening of environmental
impacts of the proposed project under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). This screening will
follow the methods and process required by the National Parks Service, described on the NPS Form 10-904.
VHB's specialized NEPA professionals will complete environmental screening checklist on the form with the
best available knowledge. VHB understands this checklist will be sufficient for this grant application. No
additional NEPA documentation is included in this scope of work.

Meetings: None anticipated.

Deliverables: Complete Environmental Resources Survey section of NPS Form 10-904.

LWCF APPLICATION PREPARATION

As a result of the DNCR pre-application site visit performed on July 23, 2024 and confirmed in DNCR email
correspondence dated August 13, 2024, this project has met the minimum program application
requirements, and the Town anticipates an invitation to apply from DNCR. Once invited to apply, VHB will
assist the Town with preparing a complete application to the LWCF grant fund for the current grant round 35,
A complete LWCF application is anticipated to include but is not limited to the following:

>  DNCR LWCF Application Narrative & Questionnaire
»  NPS LWCF Description & Notification Form (10-903)



Ref: 82388.24 @

August 30, 2024 ﬁ.“’hb.

Page 3

5.0

> NPS LWCF Application & Revision Form {10-904)

> NH Division of Historic Resources Section 106 Review

NH Natural Heritage Bureau Data Check & Coordination

USFWS informaticn for Planning and Consultation (IPaC) Determination

NH Department of Environmental Services Permits (Wetlands, Shorelands & AoT)
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Screening

Property boundary survey stamped by a NH licensed Professional Land Surveyor
Engineering design plans

L L e "

Public review/comment periods and summary reports

VHB will support the Town with developing a project narrative, complete drafts of required DNCR and NPS
application questionnaires and forms, and compilation of supporting materials described under other tasks
within this scope of work and the existing separate scope of work for final engineering design and
permitting. This is expected to include the list of application forms and materials listed above. VHB will draft
these documents for Town review, and has included time to address one round of comments from the Town
Engineer and Town Administrator. VHB will deliver completed application materials to the Town Engineer for
review, signature, and submission, The Town Engineer shall be responsible for receiving Select Board
approval to submit the application, gathering authorized signatures, and submitting the complete application
prior to the deadline. As of this writing, DNCR has not established an application deadline. VHB expects the
deadline will be set for December 2024 or January 2025.

Meetings: One virtual meeting with the Town to review comments.

Deliverables: One draft and one complete LWCF application package for Town signature and submittal.

SUPPLEMENTAL TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY FOR ENGINEERING DESIGN

To support future outdoor recreational improvements at the site which may be eligible for LWCF funding in
future grant rounds, VHB will conduct a topographic survey for design purposes to locate features and
develop one (1) foot contours of a two (2) acre area depicted in the blue outline of the aerial image below.
Features such the gravel road, a small garage/building, several small primitive day use camping sites (foot
paths, tent sites, picnic tables, fire rings), and trees with DBH of 12 inches or more will be field located as well
as trees with DBH of 12 inches or more within 25 feet of the proposed project footprint.

Meetings: None anticipated.

Deliverables: Existing conditions plan to be delivered separately under VHB project number 53023.01.



Ref: 82388.24
August 30, 2024
Page 4

i

—

vhb.

6.0 604B PLANNING GRANT

To support additional Town grant applications related to Robinson Pond watershed restoration, VHB will
assist the Town in supporting the Nashua Regional Planning Commission (NRPC) with their grant application
to the NHDES grant program for watershed planning efforts (604(b) grant). This grant builds upon a previous
604(b) planning grant awarded to NPRC for the development of a Water Quality Protection Plan for Robinson
Pond. NRPC will compile the four-page grant application and act as project sponsor. VHB will provide project
background information to NRPC and review one draft of the grant application on behalf of the Town.

Meetings: None anticipated

Deliverables: One review of NRPC's draft grant application with comments delivered to NRPC via email.

7.0  PROJECT MANAGEMENT

VHB will perform project management activities related to this project including QA/QC of deliverables,
internal and client kickoff meetings, and will provide monthly invoices with progress reports.

Meetings: One internal and one virtual client kickoff meeting.

Deliverables: Monthly invoices with progress reports.

SCHEDULE

VHB anticipates the Town would be invited to apply in August 2024 and a compiete application to DNCR would be
required in December 2024. VHB understands that DNCR will review applications and select projects through a
competitive selection process. VHB understands that projects selected by DNCR are expected to be submitted to
the NPS in April 2025 for funding, with NPS awards granted to DNCR in October 2025. DNCR sub-award
agreements to individual project awardees are expected to be submitted for Governor & Executive Council approval
between November 2025 and January 2026, with a project funding becoming available to the Town no earlier than
January 2026.

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED

The following tasks or services are not included within this scope of work:
»  Grant administration.
> Federal, state, or local permitting.
>  NEPA documentation not explicitly included.
> Services not specifically described in this proposal.

COMPENSATION

VHB will complete this task on a lump sum basis and will bill by percent complete. VHB will not exceed this fee
without prior written approval from the Town.



Ref: 82388.24 Zpttt

August 30, 2024 .Vhb.

Page 5

Prepared by: Garrison Beck Document Approval: Peter Walker

Please execute this Client Authorization for VHB to proceed with the above scope of services at the stated estimated costs. No services will be
provided until it is signed and returned to VHB.

Bd Subject to attached terms & conditions O Subject to terms & conditions in our original agreement
dated
VANASSE HANGEN BRUSTLIN, INC. AUTHORIZATION CLIENT AUTHORIZATION (Please sign original and return)
By: i By:
Print: David Fenstermacher Print:
Title: Managing Director Title:

Date: August 29, 2024 Date:




STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS. The engagement of
VHE by Client is under the following terms and conditions. These
terms and conditions are an integral part of the collective
Agreement between Client and VHB,

SCOPE OF SERVICES. VHB shall perform the services set forth in
the attached Scope of Services. Requests for additional services
and any associated fee adjustment must be authorized in writing
before additional services can begin.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. VHB's services require decisions
that are not based upon science, but rather upon judgmental
considerations. In the performance or furnishing of professional
services hereunder, VHB, and those it is responsible for, shall
exercise the degree of skill and care ordinarily exercised by
similarly practicing professionals performing similar services
under similar conditions in the same locality ("Standard of Care”).
VHB shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of
data, reports, surveys, requirements, and other information
provided by Client.

SCHEDULE. VHB shall perform its services as set forth in the
Scope of Services as expeditiously as consistent with the
Standard of Care and the orderly progress of the Work. VHB shall
not be responsible for failure to perform or for delays in the
services arising out of factors beyond the reasonable control or
without the fault or negligence of VHB.

PAYMENT. The fee estimate for the proposed Scope of Services
is valid for 60 days from the date of Proposal, All schedules set
forth in the attached Scope of Services commence upon receipt
of a signed Agreement and, if requested, a retainer, Retainers will
be applied to the last invoice. A RETAINER OF $[ ]
IS REQUIRED BEFCRE SERVICES WILL COMMENCE.

Invoices will be rendered monthly and are due upon receipt. Any
invoice unpaid more than 30 days after date of invoice will bear
interest at 1-1/2 percent per month.

If Client fails to pay any invoice within 45 days of the date of
invoice, VHB may, without waiving any other claim or right
against Client or incurring any liability for delay, suspend the
services until VHB has been paid in full. Sealed plans, final
documents, reports, and attendance at meetings/hearings will
not be provided unless payment for services is current.

If VHB is performing services for Client under multiple projects,
payments must be current on all projects for services hereunder
to continue. Client acknowledges VHB's right to suspend services
and withhold plans and documents, as provided above, if any
payments are overdue. If services are suspended for 30 days or
longer, upon resuming services VHB shall be entitled to expenses
incurred in the interruption and resumption of its services. If

services are suspended for 90 days cr longer, VHB shall be
entitled to expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption
of its services and fees for remaining services shall be equitably
adjusted.

The parties agree to coordinate invoices to assure timely
payment. At minimum, VHB's project manager and Client's
representative will confer as often as necessary about any issues
involving invoicing and collections. Client's representative will
contact VHB's project manager forthwith upon receipt of an
invoice about any questions or issues concerning invoiced
amounts. If Client’s representative and VHB's project manager are
unable to resolve any questions or issues, Client's representative
will line item any disputed or questionable amount and pay VHB.
VHB, at its option, may revise and resubmit disputed amounts at
a later date.

Should it become necessary to utilize legal or other resources to
collect any or all monies rightfully due for services rendered
under this Agreement, VHB shall be entitled to full
reimbursement of all such costs, including reasonahble attorneys’
fees, as part of this Agreement.

OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT. All work products (whether
in hard or electronic form) prepared by VHB pursuant to the
Agreement are instruments of service with respect to the Project
and are not authorized, intended or represented to be suitable
for reuse by Client or others on extensions of the Project or on
any other Project. Any reuse by Client or a third person or entity
authorized by Client without written verification or adaptation by
VHB for the specific application will be at Client’s sole risk and
without liability or legal exposure to VHB. Client shall release,
defend, indemnify and hold harmless VHB from all claims,
damages, losses and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising
out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification or adaptation
will entitle VHB to additional compensation at rates to be agreed
upon by VHB and Client, third person, or entity seeking to reuse
said documents, '

Client recognizes that information recorded on or transmitted as
electronic media, including CADD documents (“Electronic
Documents”) is subject to undetectable alteration, either
intentional or unintentional, due to, among other causes,
transmission, conversion, media degradation, software error, or
human alteration. Accordingly, the Electronic Docurnents are
provided to Client for informational purposes only and are not
represented as suitable for any use or purpose.

VHB retains the copyright in all work products produced in
connection with this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in
writing by an authorized VHB representative. VHB licenses to
Client on a non-exclusive basis the use of work products
produced solely in connection with this Agreement. The license

Page1of4



may be revoked for any failure of Client to perform under this
Agreement.

CERTIFICATIONS. VHB shall not be required to sign any
documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result in
VHB having to certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of
conditions whose existence VHB cannot wholly ascertain. Any
certification provided by VHB shall be so provided based on
VHB's knowledge, infarmation, and belief subject to the
preceding sentence, and shall reflect no greater certainty than
VHB's professional opinion developed through and consistent
with the Standard of Care. VHB shall be compensated for any
wark necessary to assess project compliance with regulatory
standards for purposes of such certification.

INSURANCE, VHB agrees to carry the following insurance during
the term of this Agreement:
+ Workmen's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance
in compliance with statutory limits
+ Comprehensive General Liability Insurance including
Products Completed, Contractual, Property, and Personal
Injury coverage with combined single limits of $1,000,000
per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate
» Professional Liability Insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 per
claim and in the aggregate
» Automobile Liability Insurance including non-owned and
hired automobiles with a combined single limit of $1,000,000
per accurrence '
Certificates of insurance will be furnished upon request. If Client
requires additional insurance coverage, and it is available, Client
agrees to reimburse VHB for such additional expense.

INDEMNITY. Client and VHB shall at all times indemnify and save
harmless each other, their officers, and employees on account of
damages, losses, expenses, reasonable counsel fees, and
compensation arising out of any claims for damages, personal
injuries and/or property losses sustained by any person or entity,
to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errars or omissions of
the indemnifying party. its employees, or subcontractors in
connection with the Project, and/or under this Agreement.

Client agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify
and hold harmless VHB, its officers, employees and
subconsultants from and against any and all claims, suits,
demands, liabilities costs including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
and defense costs caused by, arising out of, or in any way
connected with the detection, presence, handling, removal,
abatement, or disposal of any asbestos or hazardous or toxic
substances, products, or material that exist on, about, or adjacent
to the job site.

LIMITATION ON VHB’S RESPONSIBILITY AND JOBSITE
SAFETY. VHB wili not be responsible for the acts or omissions of

contractors or others at the Site, except for its own
subcontractors and employees. Neither the professional activities
of VHB nor the presence of VHB or its employees or
subconsultants at a project site shall relieve the other parties on
this project of their obligations, duties, and, including, but not
limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques,
or procedures necessary for performing, superintending, and
coordinating the Work in accordance with the contract
documents and any health or safety precautions required by any
regulatory agencies. VHB and its personnel have no authority to
exercise any control over any construction contractor or its
employees in connection with their work or any health or safety
programs or procedures. Client agrees that Contractor shall be
solely responsible for job site safety and warrants that this intent
shall be carried out in Client’s contract with Contractor.

ALLOCATION OF RISK. In recognition of the relative risks and
benefits of the Project to both Client and VHB, the risks have
been allocated such that Client agrees that to the fullest extent
permitted by law, VHB's total liability in the aggregate to Client
and any persons or entities claiming by, through or under Client,
for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages
whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to the Project
and/ar this Agreement from any cause or causes, including, but
not limited to, VHB's negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability,
statutory liability, indemnity obligation, breach of contract or
breach of warranty shall not exceed the higher of $50,000 (fifty
thousand dollars), or ten (10} percent of the compensation
actually paid to VHB. Client and VHB may agree to a higher
limitation of liability for an increased fee.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION. All questions in dispute under this
Agreement shall be submitted to non-binding mediation as a
condition precedent to the institution of legal proceedings. On
the written notice of either party to the other of the election to
submit any dispute under this Agreement to mediation, each
party shall designate their representative and shall meet within
ten (10) days after the service of the notice. The parties shall then
attempt to resolve the dispute within ten (10) days of meeting.
Should the parties be unable to agree on a resolution of the
dispute, then the parties shall proceed with mediation in
accordance with the mediation rules of the American Arbitration
Association. The cost of mediation shall be borne equally by both
parties. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts.

LEGAL SUPPORT. To the extent VHB is required to respond to
any dispute resolution process, including, but not limited to,
requests for document production, discovery or a request to
appear in any deposition or legal proceeding, which is related to
the Scope of Services but does not arise out of VHB's negligent

Page 2 of 4



acts, errors or omissions, Client shall compensate VHE for all
costs incurred by VHB, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS AND COUNTERPARTS. The headings
contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference
only and shall not constitute a part hereof, or define, limit or in
any way affect the meaning of any of the terms or provisions
hereof. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, and any party hereto may execute any such
counterpart, which, when executed and delivered, shall be
deemed to be an original and all of such counterparts taken
together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.

EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES. In the event that any dispute is not
remedied through the alternative dispute resolution procedures
set forth herein, all claims, actions, and rights of action arising
from or relating in any way to this Agreement or the services
performed thereunder, whether in contract, tort, indemnity and
all other rights of action whatsoever, shall be filed in a court of
competent jurisdiction within three years of the completion of
such services, or all such claims, actions and rights of action shall
be waived. Recovery under this Agreement shall be limited by the
parties’ agreement on Allocation of Risk and the remainder of
this section.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, neither
party shall be liable to the other for any liquidated, incidental,
special, indirect or other consequential damages incurred,
regardless of the nature of the cause or whether caused by Client
or VHB, or their employees, subconsultants, or subcontractors.
Consequential damages include, without limitation, loss of use,
loss of profits, loss of production, or business interruption;
however, the same may be caused.

VHB and Client waive all claims against each other arising out of
or related to this Agreement or the services to the extent that
losses, damages, and liabilities associated with such claims have
been compensated by the proceeds of property insurance or any
other insurance policy.

VHB makes no warranties or guarantees, express or implied,
under this Agreement or any other contract document with
respect to its provision of professional services. In entering into
this Agreement, Client has relied only upon the representations
set forth in this Agreement. No verbal warranties, representations,
or statements shall be considered a part of this Agreement or a
basis upon which Client relied in entering into this Agreement,

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause
of action in favor of, a third party against either Client or VHB. In
addition, nothing herein shall be construed as creating a
contractual relationship between Client and any VHB employee,

representative, or consultant. Client agrees that in the event of a
dispute regarding this Agreement or the services rendered by
VHB hereunder, Client shall only seek recourse against VHB and
waives any right to pursue a claim against VHB's individual
directors, officers or employees.

VHE’s commitments as set forth in this Agreement are based on
the expectation that all of the services described in this
Agreement will be provided. In the event Client [ater elects to
reduce VHB's Scope of Services, Client hereby agrees to release,
hold harmless, defend, and indemnify VHB from any and all
claims, damages, losses or costs associated with or arising out of
such reduction in services.

SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which
shall remain in full force and effect.

TAXES. Any taxes or fees, enacted by local, state, or federal
government and based on gross receipts or revenues, will be
invoiced to and payable by Client as an additional amount due
under this Agreement.

PROJECT SPECIFIC PROVISIONS. To the extent the Scope of
Services involves any of the following services/geographies, the
following general provisions apply accordingly:

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), Client
understands and agrees that ADA standards are evolving and
subject to varying, potentially contradictory interpretations and
applications. VHB will use its reasonable professional efforts and
judgment to interpret applicable ADA reguirements and other
federal, state and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances, and
regulations as they apply to the project. VHB cannot and does
not warrant or guarantee that Client’s Project will comply with all
ADA requirements or ADA interpretations or other applicable
regulatory interpretations.

CLIMATE CHANGE/FLOOD ANALYSIS. Consultant shall not be
responsible or liable for any damages, losses, litigation, expenses,
counsel fees and compensation arising out of any claims,
damages, personal injuries and/or property losses related to
flooding conditions whether directly or indirectly due to flood
water damage, and Client shall at all times indemnify and hold
harmless VHB, its respective officers, agents and employees on
account of any related claims, damages, losses, expenses and
counse| fees related thereto,

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

SITE VISITS. VHB shall make periodic site visits upon the request
of Client or as otherwise agreed in writing by Client and VHB for

Page 3 of 4



the limited purpose of determining whether work is in general
conformance with VHB's plans and specifications. Such visits are
not intended to be an exhaustive check or a detailed inspection
of Contractor's work. VHB shall not supervise or have control over
Contractor's work nor have any responsibility for construction
ways, means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures
selected by Contractor nor for Contractor's safety precautions or
programs in connection with the Work.

SHOP DRAWINGS. VHB's review and approval of submittals
such as shop drawings, product data, samples, and other data,
shall be for the limited purpeose of checking for conformance with
the design concept and the information in VHB's documents. This
review shall not include review of the accuracy or completeness
of details, such as quantities, dimensions, weights or gauges,
fabrication processes, construction means or methods,
coordination of the work with other trades, or construction safety
precautions, all of which are the sole responsibility of Contractor
and other unrelated parties. Review of a specific item shall not
indicate that VHB has reviewed the entire assembly of which the
item is a component. VHB shall not be responsible for any
deviations from VHB's documents or other documents that are
not brought to the attention of VHB in writing by Contractor. VHB
shall not be required to review partial submissions or those for
which submission of correlated items have not been received.

GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES. Client understands that VHB does
not perform geotechnical services directly and, if requested, will
retain a geotechnical subconsultant on behalf of Client, and VHB
shall rely on the accuracy and completeness of data furnished as
if the geotechnical services were contracted directly through
Client.

TANK INSPECTION. Client will provide VHB with available
underground storage tank (UST} documentation as necessary,
VHB assumes that the documentation and site plans will be in
order, be complete and meet regulatory compliance standards.
VHB's inspection services are to fulfill regulatory requirements
and do not include invasive testing or equipment calibration and
testing. Accordingly, Client expressiy agrees that VHB shall have
no fiability for equipment functioning or malfunctioning, product
releases or spills.

LSP SERVICES —~ PROJECTS LOCATED IN MASSACHUSETTS. In
accordance with the Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 21E,
the performance of the services contained in this Agreement may
require the engagement of a Licensed Site Professional (LSP)
registered with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts under
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 21A and the regulations
promulgated by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental
Protection (MADEP) thereunder (collectively the LSP Program).
These laws and regulations place upon the LSP certain
professional obligations owed to the public, including in some

Gy
=vhb.

instances a duty to disclose the existence of certain
environmental contaminants to the MADEP. In the event that any
site for which VHB has provided LSP services is audited by
MADEP pursuant to the provisions of the Massachusetts
Contingency Plan, VHB shall be entitied to additional
compensation to provide such services as may be necessary to
assist Client in its response to MADEP.

Client understands and acknowledges that in the event the LSP's
obligations under the LSP Program conflict in any way with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement or the wishes or
intentions of Client, the LSP is bound by law to comply with the
requirements of the LSP Program. Accordingly, Client recognizes
that the LSP shall be immune for all civil liability resulting from
any alleged and/or actual conflict with the LSP Program. Client
also agrees to hold VHB and its LSP harmless for any claims,
losses, damages, fines, or administrative, civil, or criminal
penalties resulting from the LSP's fulfillment of its obligations
under the LSP Program.

PROJECTS LOCATED IN FLORIDA.
FLORIDA STATUTES SECTION
558.0035 (2013), AN INDIVIDUAL
EMPLOYEE OR AGENT MAY NOT BE
HELD INDIVIDUALLY LIABLE FOR
ECONOMIC DAMAGES RESULTING
FROM NEGLIGENCE OCCURRING
WITHIN THE COURSE AND SCOPE
OF THIS AGREEMENT.

Page 4 of 4



Engineers l Scientists | Planners | Designers H M H )
2 Bedford Farms Drive, Suite 200, Bedford, New Hampshire 03110 Chent AUthorlzatlon

P 603.391.3900 F 603.5187495 www.vhb.com

X New Contract Dafe: August 30, 2024
O Amendment No, Project No. 85836.24
Project Name: Robinson Pond Subdivision, Hudson NH

Cost Estimate

To: Elvis Dhima, P.E. Amendment Contract Total
Town of Hudson Labor $19,950
12 School Street Expenses Included
Hudson, NH 03051 TOTAL I — $19,950
Email: edhima@hudsonnh.gov ®  LumpSum O Time & Expenses
O Cost + Fixed Fee 0O Labor Multiplier
Phone No: 603-886-6008 Estimated Date of Completion: 6 weeks from NTP

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Client has requested that a subdivision be created to divide the existing 47-acre parcel located at 52 Robinson
Road into two parcels. VHB will conduct professional survey services and permitting services in support of the
subdivision of land (the Project), in Hudson, NH.

A detailed summary of each component of the scope is presented below.

1.0  MINOR SUBDIVISION

VHB will prepare the Minor Subdivision application in coordination with the Owner based on the approved
(Conceptual) Site Plan. VHB will prepare a subdivision plan to create one (1) new parcel. The plan will meet
the requirements as stated in the Town of Hudson Subdivision Regulations.

As part of this task, VHB will prepare a metes and bounds parcel description describing the boundary lines of
the proposed parcel.

2.0  SURVEY SERVICES

2.1  Data Collection and Analysis

VHB will perform research, field survey, office calculations and plan preparation to establish the existing
property line for the proposed subdivision. VHB will conduct an on the ground survey of the project
boundaries. The following is a breakdown of tasks required to conduct the property line survey:

Research - VHB will perform property research at the Town and County Registry of Deeds. Assessor
information, plans, deed copies will be obtained to assist in the determination of boundary lines.

Field Survey - Utilizing the information gathered during the research task, VHB will recover and locate
monuments within the project area and abutting properties to assist in the determination of the boundaries.
Evidence of the perimeter property lines (bounds, pipes, fences, walls, etc,) will be field measured, compiled
with record data and shown on the Existing Conditions Survey Plan.

Data Analysis and Deed Interpretation — Based on the data gathered above, VHB will calculate and analyze
existing record property line data and compare the results with the field located boundary evidence.

\\vhb.com\gbl\prop\Bedford\85836.24 Hudson Boundary Survey\Draft Contracts\53023 Robinsen Pond - Subdivision and Survey v2.docx



Ref: 85836.24 o

August 30, 2024 g.\"hb.

Page 2

2.2  Existing Conditions Survey

VHB will perform an on the ground instrument survey to locate existing features such as buildings, building
heights, wetland delineation flags, driveways, wells, septic systems, and edge of road.

2.3 Subdivision Plan for Application and Recording

VHB will prepare a topographic existing conditions plan depicting the proposed subdivision to be included in
the Minor Subdivision Application (Task 1). After Town approval, VHB will provide a recording Mylar meeting
the Merrimack County Registry of Deeds recording standards.

2.4 Monument Installation

VHB will provide an allowance to install up to six (6) iron rod monuments at the corners of the proposed lots.

3.0 MEETINGS AND COORDINATION

VHB anticipates meetings and coordination with the Town of Hooksett, Client and others will be required.
Meeting time includes coordination, preparation, travel, attendance, supporiing graphics (when required),
and documentation (when required) in the form of meeting notes. For the purposes of budgeting, VHB has
allocated four {4) hours to support this task. If this budget allocation is exhausted, VHB will request additional
compensation and written autherization prior to attending future meetings under this task.

CLIENT-FURNISHED INFORMATION

It is understood that VHB will perform services under the sole direction of the Client. In the performance of these
services, VHB will coordinate its efforts with those of other project team members, as required. The Client shall
provide VHB with project-related technical data including, but not limited to, the following:

Permission to access the property and building areas as necessary;
Copies of available records, deeds, and prior surveys;
Access to neighboring properties to map wells and septic systems;

Project-related technical data including any historical environmental reports, and all other relevant data
pertaining to the environmental condition of the site.

e

VHB will rely upon the accuracy and completeness of client-furnished information in connection with the
performance of services under this Agreement.

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED
Certain services are not anticipated, or information required for their proper scoping is not available at this time.
Therefore, the following tasks are not included in this proposal.

- Survey to resolve boundary conflicts.

- Construction services, including but not limited to control and layout.

= Installation of any monuments not included in this proposal.

- ALTA survey.

- Wetland delineation.

~ Design of off-site improvements.

—~ Services not specially outlined in this proposal.

If work is required in these areas, or areas not previously described, VHB will prepare a proposal or amendment, at
the request of the Client, that contains the Scope of Services, fee, and schedule required to complete the additicnal
tasks.



Ref: 85836.24 Lot

August 30, 2024 Vhb.

Page 3

Prepared by: Glen Johnson Document Approval: Dave Fenstermacher

Please execute this Client Authorization for VHB to proceed with the abave scope of services at the stated estimated costs. No services will be
provided until it is signed and returned to VHB.

®  Subject to attached terms & conditions O Subject to terms & conditions in our original agreement
dated
VANASSE HANGEN BRUSTLIN, INC. AUTHORIZATION CLIENT AUTHORIZATION (Please sign original and return)
By: 9’/ L_@ By:
L LY
Print: Dave Fenstermacher Print.
Title: Managing Director Title:

Date: August 29, 2024 Date:



PART 1l STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS. The
engagement of VHB by Client is under the following terms and
conditions. These terms and conditions are an integral part of the
collective Agreement between Client and VHB.

SCOPE OF SERVICES. VHB shall perform the services set forth in
the attached Scope of Services. Requests for additional services
and any associated fee adjustment must be authorized in writing
before additional services can begin.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. VHB's services require decisions
that are not based upon science, but rather upon judgmental
considerations. In the performance or furnishing of professional
services hereunder, VHB, and those it is responsible for, shall
exercise the degree of skill and care ordinarily exercised by
similarly practicing professionals performing similar services
under similar conditions in the same locality ("Standard of Care").
VHB shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of
data, reports, surveys, requirements, and other information
provided by Client.

SCHEDULE. VHB shall perform its services as set forth in the
Scope of Services as expeditiously as consistent with the
Standard of Care and the orderly progress of the Work. VHB shall
not be responsible for failure to perform or for delays in the
services arising out of factors beyond the reasonable control or
without the fault or negligence of VHB.

PAYMENT. The fee estimate for the proposed Scope of Services
is valid for 60 days from the date of Proposal. All schedules set
forth in the attached Scope of Services commence upon receipt
of a signed Agreement and, if requested, a retainer. Retainers will
be applied to the last invoice. A RETAINER OF $[ )
IS REQUIRED BEFORE SERVICES WILL COMMENCE.

Invoices will be rendered monthly and are due upon receipt. Any
invoice unpaid more than 30 days after date of invoice will bear
interest at 1-1/2 percent per month,

If Client fails to pay any invoice within 45 days of the date of
invoice, VHB may, without waiving any other claim or right
against Client or incurring any liability for delay, suspend the
services until VHB has been paid in full. Sealed plans, final
documents, reports, and attendance at meetings/hearings will
not be provided unless payment for services is current.

If VHB is performing services far Client under multiple projects,
payments must be current on all projects for services hereunder
to continue. Client acknowledges VHB's right to suspend services
and withhold plans and documents, as provided above, if any
payments are overdue. If services are suspended for 30 days or
longer, upon resuming services VHB shall be entitled to expenses
incurred in the interruption and resumption of its services. If

services are suspended for 90 days or longer, VHB shall be
entitled to expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption
of its services and feas for remaining services shall be equitably
adjusted.

The parties agree to coordinate invoices to assure timely
payment. At minimum, VHB's project manager and Client's
representative will confer as often as necessary about any issues
involving invoicing and collections. Client's representative will
contact VHB's project manager forthwith upon receipt of an
invoice about any questions or issues concerning invoiced
amounts. If Client’s representative and VHB's project manager are
unable to resolve any questions or issues, Client's representative
will line item any disputed or questionable amount and pay VHB.
VHB, at its option, may revise and resubmit disputed amounts at
a later date.

Should it become necessary to utilize legal or other resources to
collect any or all monies rightfully due for services rendered
under this Agreement, VHB shall be entitled to full
reimbursement of all such costs, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, as part of this Agreement.

OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT. All work products (whether
in hard or electronic form} prepared by VHB pursuant to the
Agreement are instruments of service with respect to the Project
and are not authorized, intended or represented to be suitable
for reuse by Client or others on extensions of the Project or on
any other Project. Any reuse by Client or a third person or entity
authorized by Client without written verification or adaptation by
VHB for the specific application will be at Client’s sole risk and
without liability or legal exposure to VHB. Client shall release,
defend, indemnify and hold harmless YHB from all claims,
damages, losses and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising
out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification or adaptation
will entitle VHB to additional compensation at rates to be agreed
upon by VHB and Client, third person, or entity seeking to reuse
said documents.

Client recognizes that information recorded on or transmitted as
electronic media, including CADD documents ("Electronic
Documents”} is subject to undetectable alteration, either
intentional or unintentional, due to, among other causes,
transmission, conversion, media degradation, software error, or
human alteration. Accordingly, the Electronic Documents are
provided to Client for informational purposes only and are not
represented as suitable for any use or purpose.

VHB retains the copyright in all work products produced in
connection with this Agreement, unless ctherwise agreed to in
writing by an authorized VHB representative. VHB licenses to
Client on a non-exclusive basis the use of work products
produced solely in connection with this Agreement. The license

Page 1 of 4



may be revoked for any failure of Client to perform under this
Agreement.

CERTIFICATIONS. VHB shall not be required to sign any
documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result in
VHB having to certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of
conditions whose existence VHB cannot wholly ascertain. Any
certification provided by VHB shall be so provided based on
VHB’s knowledge, information, and belief subject to the
preceding sentence, and shall reflect no greater certainty than
VHB's professional opinion developed through and consistent
with the Standard of Care. VHB shall be compensated for any
work necessary to assess project compliance with regulatory
standards for purposes of such certification,

INSURANCE. VHB agrees to carry the following insurance during
the term of this Agreement:
+ Workmen's Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance
in compliance with statutory limits
+ Comprehensive General Liability Insurance including
Products Completed, Contractual, Property, and Personal
Injury coverage with combined single limits of $1,000,000
per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate
+ Professional Liability Insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 per
claim and in the aggregate
+ Automobile Liability Insurance including non-owned and
hired automobiles with a combined single limit of $1,000,000
per occurrence
Certificates of insurance will be furnished upon request. If Client
requires additional insyrance coverage, and it is available, Client
agrees to reimburse VHB for such additional expense.

INDEMNITY. Client and VHB shall at all times indemnify and save
harmiless each other, their officers, and employees on account of
damages, losses, expenses, reasonable counsel fees, and
compensation arising out of any claims for damages, personal
injuries and/ar property losses sustained by any person or entity,
to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of
the indemnifying party, its employees, or subcontractors in
connection with the Project, and/or under this Agreement.

Client agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify
and hold harmless VHB, its officers, employees and
subconsultants from and against any and all claims, suits,
demands, liabilities costs including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
and defense costs caused by, arising out of, or in any way
connected with the detection, presence, handling, removal,
abatement, or disposal of any ashestos or hazardous or toxic
substances, products, or material that exist on, about, or adjacent
to the job site.

LIMITATION ON VHB'S RESPONSIBILITY AND JOBSITE
SAFETY. VHB will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of

22 ",‘n.
—"]

=vhb.

contractors or others at the Site, except for its own
subcontractors and employees. Neither the professional activities
of VHB nor the presence of VHB or its employees or
subconsultants at a project site shall relieve the other parties on
this project of their obligations, duties, and, including, but not
limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques,
or procedures necessary for performing, superintending, and
coordinating the Work in accordance with the contract
documents and any health or safety precautions required by any
regulatory agencies. VHB and its personnel have no authority to
exercise any control.over any construction contractor or its
employees in connection with their work or any health or safety
programs or procedures. Client agrees that Contractor shall be
solely responsible for job site safety and warrants that this intent
shall be carried out in Client’s contract with Contractor.

ALLOCATION OF RISK. In recognition of the relative risks and
benefits of the Project to both Client and VHB, the risks have
been allocated such that Client agrees that to the fullest extent
permitted by law, VHB's total liability in the aggregate to Client
and any persons or entities claiming by, through or under Client,
for any and ali injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages
whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to the Project
and/or this Agreement from any cause or causes, including, but
not limited to, VHB's negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability,
statutory liability, indemnity obligation, breach of contract or
breach of warranty shall not exceed the higher of $50,000 (fifty
thousand dollars), or ten (10} percent of the compensation
actually paid to VHB. Client and VHB may agree to a higher
limitation of liability for an increased fee.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION. All questions in dispute under this
Agreement shall be submitted to non-binding mediation as a
condition precedent to the institution of legal proceedings. On
the written notice of either party to the other of the election to
submit any dispute under this Agreement to mediation, each
party shall designate their representative and shall meet within
ten (10) days after the service of the notice. The parties shall then
attempt to resolve the dispute within ten (10) days of meeting.
Should the parties be unable to agree on a resolution of the
dispute, then the parties shall proceed with mediation in
accordance with the mediation rules of the American Arbitration
Association. The cost of mediation shall be borne equally by both
parties. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts.

LEGAL SUPPORT, To the extent VHB is required to respond to
any dispute resolution process, including, but not limited to,
requests for document production, discovery or a request to
appear in any deposition or legal proceeding, which is related to
the Scope of Services but does not arise out of VHB's negligent

Page 2 of 4



acts, errars or omissions, Client shall compensate VHB for all
costs incurred by VHB, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,

DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS AND COUNTERPARTS, The headings
contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference
only and shali not constitute a part hereof, or define, limit or in
any way affect the meaning of any of the terms or provisions
hereof. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, and any party hereto may execute any such
counterpart, which, when executed and delivered, shall be
deemed to be an criginal and all of such counterparts taken
together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.

EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES. In the event that any dispute is not
remedied through the alternative dispute resolution procedures
set forth herein, all claims, actions, and rights of action arising
from or relating in any way to this Agreement or the services
performed thereunder, whether in contract, tort, indemnity and
all other rights of action whatsoever, shall be filed in a court of
competent jurisdiction within three years of the completion of
such services, or all such claims, actions and rights of action shall
be waived. Recovery under this Agreement shall be limited by the
parties’ agreement on Allocation of Risk and the remainder of
this section.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, neither
party shall be liable to the other for any liquidated, incidental,
special, indirect or other consequential damages incurred,
regardless of the nature of the cause or whether caused by Client
or VHB, or their employees, subconsultants, or subcontractors.
Consequential damages include, without limitation, loss of use,
loss of profits, loss of production, or business interruption;
however, the same may be caused.

VHB and Client waive all claims against each other arising out of
or related to this Agreement or the services to the extent that
losses, damages, and liabilities associated with such claims have
been compensated by the proceeds of property insurance or any
other insurance policy.

VHB makes no warranties or guarantees, express or implied,
under this Agreement or any other contract document with
respect to its provision of professional services. In entering into
this Agreement, Client has relied only upon the representations
set forth in this Agreement. No verbal warranties, representations,
or statements shall be considered a part of this Agreement or a
basis upon which Client relied in entering into this Agreement.

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause
of action in favor of, a third party against either Client or VHB. In
addition, nothing herein shall be construed as creating a
contractual relationship between Client and any VHB employee,

representative, or consultant. Client agrees that in the event of a
dispute regarding this Agreement or the services rendered by
VHB hereunder, Client shall only seek recourse against VHB and
waives any right to pursue a claim against VHB's individual
directors, officers or employees.

VHB's commitments as set forth in this Agreement are based on
the expectation that all of the services described in this
Agreement will be provided. In the event Client later elects to
reduce VHB's Scope of Services, Client hereby agrees to release,
hald harmless, defend, and indemnify YHB from any and all
claims, damages, losses or costs associated with or arising out of
such reducticn in services.

SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which
shall remain in full force and effect.

TAXES. Any taxes or fees, enacted by local, state, or federal
government and based on gross receipts or revenues, will be
invoiced to and payable by Client as an additional amount due
under this Agreement.

PROJECT SPECIFIC PROVISIONS. To the extent the Scope of
Services involves any of the following services/geographies, the
following general provisions apply accordingly:

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA). Client
understands and agrees that ADA standards are evolving and
subject to varying, potentially contradictory interpretations and
applications. VHB will use its reasonable professional efforts and
Jjudgment to interpret applicable ADA requirements and other
federal, state and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances, and
regulations as they apply to the project. VHB cannot and does
not warrant or guarantee that Client's Project will comply with all
ADA requirements or ADA interpretations or other applicable
regulatory interpretations.

CLIMATE CHANGE/FLOOD ANALYSIS. Consultant shall not be
responsible or liable for any damages, losses, litigation, expenses,
counsel fees and compensation arising out of any claims,
damages, personal injuries and/or property losses related to
flooding conditions whether directly or indirectly due to flood
water damage, and Client shall at all times indemnify and hold
harmless VHB, its respective officers, agents and employees on
account of any related claims, damages, losses, expenses and
counsel fees related thereto.

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

SITE VISITS. VHB shall make periodic site visits upon the request
of Client or as otherwise agreed in writing by Client and VHB for

Page 3 of 4



the limited purpose of determining whether work is in general
conformance with VHB's plans and specifications. Such visits are
not intended to be an exhaustive check or a detailed inspection
of Contractor's work. VHB shall not supervise or have control over
Contractor’s work nor have any responsibility for construction
ways, means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures
selected by Contractor nor for Contractor's safety precautions or
programs in connection with the Work,

SHOP DRAWINGS. VHB's review and approval of submittals
such as shop drawings, product data, samples, and other data,
shall be for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with
the design concept and the information in VHB’s documents. This
review shall not include review of the accuracy or completenass
of details, such as quantities, dimensions, weights or gauges,
fabrication processes, construction means or methods,
coordination of the work with other trades, or construction safety
precautions, all of which are the sole responsibility of Contractor
and other unrelated parties. Review of a specific item shall not
indicate that VHB has reviewed the entire assembly of which the
item is a component. VHB shall not be responsible for any
deviations from VHB's documents or other documents that are
not brought to the attention of VHB in writing by Contractor. VHB
shall not be required to review partial submissions or those for
which submission of correlated items have not been received.

GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES. Client understands that VHB does
not perform geotechnical services directly and, if requested, will
retain a geotechnical subconsultant on behalf of Client, and VHB
shall rely on the accuracy and completeness of data furnished as
if the geotechnical services were contracted directly through
Client.

TANK INSPECTION. Client will provide VHB with available
underground storage tank (UST) documentation as necessary.
VHB assumes that the documentation and site plans will be in
order, be complete and meet regulatory compliance standards.
VHB's inspection services are to fulfill requlatory requirements
and do not include invasive testing or equipment calibration and
testing. Accordingly, Client expressly agrees that VHB shall have
no liability for equipment functioning or malfunctioning, product
releases or spills.

LSP SERVICES - PROJECTS LOCATED IN MASSACHUSETTS. In
accordance with the Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 21E,
the performance of the services contained in this Agreement may
require the engagement of a Licensed Site Professional {LSP)
registered with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts under
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 21A and the reguiations
promulgated by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental
Protection (MADEP) thereunder {collectively the LSP Program).
These laws and regulations place upon the LSP certain
professional obligations owed to the public, including in some

instances a duty to disclose the existence of certain
environmental contaminants to the MADEP. In the event that any
site for which VHB has provided LSP services is audited by
MADEP pursuant to the provisions of the Massachusetts
Contingency Plan, VHB shall be entitled to additional
compensation to provide such services as may be necessary to
assist Client in its response to MADEP.

Client understands and acknowledges that in the event the LSP's
obligations under the LSP Program conflict in any way with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement or the wishes or
intentions of Client, the LSP is bound by law to comply with the
requirements of the LSP Program. Accordingly, Client recognizes
that the LSP shall be immune for all civil liability resulting from
any alleged and/or actual conflict with the LSP Program. Client
also agrees to hold VHB and its LSP harmless for any claims,
losses, damages, fines, or administrative, civil, or criminal
penalties resulting from the LSP’s fulfillment of its obligations
under the LSP Program.

PROJECTS LOCATED IN FLORIDA.
FLORIDA STATUTES SECTION
558.0035 (2013), AN INDIVIDUAL
EMPLOYEE OR AGENT MAY NOT BE
HELD INDIVIDUALLY LIABLE FOR
ECONOMIC DAMAGES RESULTING
FROM NEGLIGENCE OCCURRING
WITHIN THE COURSE AND SCOPE
OF THIS AGREEMENT.

Page 4 of 4



TOWN OF HUDSON

Engineering Department

12 School Street  *  Hudson, New Hampshire 03051  * Tel: 603-886-6008 * Fax: 603-816-1291

TO: Board of Selectmen

FROM: Elvis Dhima, P.E., Town Engineer
DATE: August 20, 2024
RE: Nashua Regional Planning Commission (NRPC)

Water Quality Planning 604(b) Program Grant Application

The Town of Hudson has been working towards improving watershed quality throughout
the town and complying with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) permit
regulations. Some of the most recent efforts have been focusing on improvements of
water quality at Robinson Pond.

In 2020, we worked with NRPC to secure a $50,000 grant, with no match required to
complete the Robinson Pond Water Quality Protection Plan, completed in 2024. At that
time, we provided a letter of support to NRPC for the grant, please see attachment.

NRPC has the opportunity at this time to file for another grant, with no match required
and it will be managed by NRPC. This grant will help with development of a complete
Environmental of Protection Agency (EPA) nine-element watershed management plan
and will provide further grant opportunities for the town for implementation of any
project at this location.

Motion
To authorize the Board of Selectmen Chairman to sign a letter of support to NRPC for the
Water Quality Planning 604(b) Program grant application.

C :\Uscrs\dstickney\AppData\Local\Microsoﬂ\Windows\INetcaChe\COI'ltent.OuﬂOOk\YIU4J D03\0Old
Business  BOS Memo_WaterShed Quality Planning Phase.doc



TOWN OF HUDSON

- Conservation Commission

William Collins, Chairman David Morin, Selectmen Liaison

12 Schoo! Street * Hudson, New Hampshire 03051 * Tel: 603-886-6008 * Fax: 603-816~.-..

August 21, 2024

Andrea Beijtlich

Watershed Assistance Section

NH Department of Environmental Services
29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95

Concord, NH 03302

RE: Nashua Regional Planning Commission NHDES 604(b) Water Quality Planning Grant Application

Dear Ms. Bejtlich,

The Hudson Conservation Commission offers its commitment to the Nashua Regional Planning
Commission (NRPC) grant application to the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services
Section 604(b) Water Quality Planning Grant program and endorses the participation of the Town of
Hudson Conservation Commission to participate in an advisory capacity for this initiative.

The Conservation Commission is dedicated to Robinson Pond water quality improvements. The
Commission is currently funding engineering design and permitting costs to improve public access and
provide structural stormwater treatment at the Town-owned boat launch and beach on Robinson Pond.
In addition, the Board of Selectmen continues to fund efforts to comply with the EPA MS4 permit,
including development of a Lake Phosphorus Control Plan for Robinson Pond.

NPRC’s recently completed Robinson Pond Water Quality Protection Plan has increased our
understanding of the current water quality conditions of Robinson Pond, and the Town is committed to

developing a full EPA nine-element plan. Continuing this work by completing a full watershed plan
will help the Town take further action to restore the watershed.

Respectfully submitted,

/ ///./ M éj VSO LA L

‘William Collins, Chairman Bob Guessferd, Chafrman
Hudson Conservation Commission Hudson Board of Selectmen




Run: 8/16/24 Expenditure Report - Including Carry Forward Activity

Page: 1
11:27AM Conservation Committee bmckee
Town of Hudson, NH RepartSortedExpenditure
R As Of: August 2024, GL Year 2025 Conservation
Account Number Prior Year Budget & PY Balance
Budget Encumbered Adjustments Net Budget MTD Exp YTDExp Encumbered Available %Used
Conservation Fund
06-4619-5586-202-000 “Conserv Comm, Sm. Equipment Mtce
2,300,00 0.00 0.00 2,300.00 384.89 384.89 0.00 1,915.11 16.734
06-4619-5686-217-000 Conserv Comm, Asscc Dues/Fees i ’ :
1,327.00 0.00 0.00 1,327.00 0.00 . D.00 0.00 1,327.00 0.000
06-4619-5586-235-000 Conserv Comm, Registration Fees
500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.000
06-4619-5586-252-000 Conserv Comm, Prof Services
48,626.00 162,328.98 0.00 210,954.98 8,100.00 8,100.00 154,228.98 48,626.00 76.950
Total Conservation Fund
Selected Year 52,753.00 0.00 0.00 52,753.00 384.89 384.89 0.00 52,368.11 0.730
Prior Year 0.00 162,328.98 0.00 162,328.98 8,100.00 8,100.00 154,228.98 0.00  100.000
Sort Total §2,753.00 162,328.98 0.00 215,081.98 8,484.89 8,484.89 154,228.98 52,368.11 75.652



Run: 8/16/24

Expenditure Report - Including Carry Forward Activity

Page: 2
11:27AM Conservation Committee bmckee
Town of Hudscn, NH ReponSontedExpanditure

As Of: AUQUST 2024, GL Year 2025 Conservation

Account Number Prior Year Budget & PY Balance
Budget Encumbered Adjustments Net Budget MTD Exp YTDExp Encumbered Available %Used
Selected Year 52,753.00 0.00 0.00 §2,753.00 384.89 384.89 0.00 52,368.11 0.730
Prior Year 0.00 162,328.98 0.00 162,328.98 8,100.00 8,100.00 154,228.98 0.00  100.000
Grand Total 52,753.00 162,328.98 0.00 215,081.98 8,484.89 8,484.89 §2,368.11  75.652

154,228.98



Town of Hudson, NH
Conservation Cash Flow
Fiscal Year 2025

[
3
=
=~
X

:

July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
|conservation |
Beginning Bal. 782,220.64 - - - - -
Income
Deposits - - - - - -
Interest 2,132.40 - - - - -
Total [ncome 213240 - - - - -
Experditures
Expenditures - - - - - -
Bank Charges - - - - - -
Total Expend. - - - - N .

Ending Balance 791,363.04 - - - - -




Run: 8/16/24

Revenue Report Page: 1
11:11AM bmckee
RepartSottadr svanua
Town of Hudson, NH
As Of: July 2024, GL Year 2025
Account Number Est Rev MTD Rev YTD Rev Balance %Coll
Forest Management Fund

18-3501-4704-000-000 Sale of Town Property 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Totals Forest Management Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 000  0.000

Grand Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.000



Correspondence a.

Application No:
Date Received:

Special Permit Application

$P APPLICATION-Watershed/Setback
Page 1 of 4
02/22

-WATERSHED

NH Division of Pesticide Control
PO BOX 2042 Concord NH 03302-2042

02/2022

OFFICE USE ONLY

Comments;

Referred to:

Dept. Environ. Services
Dept. Nat. & Cult. Res.
Fish & Game Department
State Entomologist
Division Public Health
Div. of Pesticide Control ]

Check here |:| if there are attached comments or conditions, or use space below:

Approve Disapprove

OO0ood
I I

Signature Date

APPLICANT INFORMATION. |

1. Name of applicant (Ind[vldual, Municipality, Organization, Flrm, or Mency):
Full Circle Forestry, LLC

Address: 113 Old Pound Read

City: Antrim

State:

Tel:

NH Zip: 08440

Fax: Cell* 603-321-3482 Lic.# : S-2439834

Contact
Eric Radlof

Name:_
Tel:

Cell*. 603-321-3482

E-mail* eradlof fef@gmail.com

2. Licensed pesticide applicator(s) (if other than party named on Line 1):

See Lline 1

Address:

City: State: ___ Zip: E-Mail
Tel: Fax: Cell* Lic #:

3. Client on whose behalf the application is being made (if other than shown on Lines 1 or 2):
Name (Person or Organlzation): Town of Hudson:Congervation Commission

Address:
City: Hudson

12 School Street

Tel: 603-886-6008

Fax:

State:_Zip: 03051

E-Mail*

Contact/Spokesperson (NamerTitle (i any)): Bill Collins- Chairman

Tel:

Cell*.

E-Mail* beoll6s956@comeast.net

*  Cell # and E-mail address Optional




SP APPLICATION-Watershed/Setback

TREATMENT AREA INFORMATION | Fage 20373

4. Have there been any previous special permits issued to conduct pesticide
applications at this site (whether or not pesticide were actually applied)? Yes ] No .
If Yes, indicate permit number and year of most recent permit:

Permit #; SP# - Year:
5. Description of Treatment Area

a. List Treatment Areas (Reference any such blocks on an attached map):
Hiking trail edges +/-10" each side in close proximity to surface waters

b Number of Blocks/Sites, Acreage of each: Site 1: 1,000'x 20' = 20,000 sqft (0.45 ac)
Site 2: 8,000' x 20" = 180,000 sqft (4.13 ac)

c. If this proposal concerns a setback easement request from surface water,
specify:

(1) Name(s) of the water body or bodies: Wetlands and unnamed tributaries; Musquash Pond

(2) Type of Water Body (and associated setbacks):

[] Public Water Supply Surface Water (250 )*
* (Applicable within watershed and within & miles of public water supply intake)
Name of Supplier or System:

(W) Public Water that does not serve as a public water supply (50)
[H] Non-Public Water (25')

(3) Nearest distance, in feet, to reference line (high watermark) of surface

water(s) that you anticipate applying pesticides, if easement is granted:
To the edge of the high water mark

d. If this proposal concerns a setback easement request from a Public Well, specify:

(1) Name of the water supplier or system: NA

(2) Type(s) of Well(s) (and associated setbacks):

[] Gravel Packed (400°)
[ ] Other (250

(3) Nearest distance, in feet, to the weli(s) that you anticipate applying
pesticides, if easement is granted: VA




8P APPLICATION-Watershed/Setback
Page 3 of 4
02/22

e. Are there any activities in the treatment area that might be affected by the

6.

pesticide application? Yes , No% . If Yes, please list and describe:

Specify the reason or need for the pesticide application. Include measures that will

be taken to minimize risk of contamination of surface- or ground-wa fer by pesticides:

To contral exalic invasive plant species. Herbicides will be applied during appropriate weather conditions to minimize the risk

of surface water contamination. Limit the amount of Rodso within the buffer zones and f or use cut stump methad. Cut stump method will be the first

choice within the buffer zone. If a backpack sprayer Is used within the buifer zone, herbicide will be sprayed opposits the diraction of the surface water.

7.

Check here E if state-listed invasive species are among the target pests, and list under 9a

Do you have approval from all property owners on whose property pesticide

applications will be made under this proposal? Yes X , No

ocooTn

9.

a.

Attach a detailed map showing the following:

Treatment areas (cross reference with blocks listed under 5a, above);
Adjacent areas,

Surface waters;

Pertinent topographic features; and

Land type(s)

Description of Pesticide Application:

Target organism(s) — (be specific): Knotweed, Glossy Buckthom, .Japanese barberry, mulfiflora rose,
Asiatic bittarsweet, honeysuckle, and autumn olive.

Method(s) of treatment: Low Volume foliar, using a backpack sprayer and cut stump.

Pesticide(s) to be used [ATTACH COPIES OF COMPLETE LABELS]

1 Name(s) & EPA #(s) of product(s) Rodeo 62719-324, Escort XP 432-1549
| abels Submitted by email for Full Circle Forestry, LLC 6/2024***

(2) Rate(s) of application(s) Rodeo 5%, Escort XP 3 oz/gal.

Application schedule (approximate dates): September 15, 2024-October 15, 2024




SP APPLICATION-Watershed/Setback
Page 4 of 4
2/22

10. By the signature(s) below, the signatories attest that the information provided in this
application is accurate and true, and they acknowledge that falsification of
information will result in denial of a special permit.

Applicant](Person named under Line 1 of this form):

Signature: Date:
* Print or Type Name/Title: Eric Radlof-Full Circle Forestry, LLC

Pesticide Applicator (From Line 2, if you have not already signed as the Applicant)

Signature: Date:
* Print or Type Name/Title:

CIié’nti(Person named on Line 3 of this form):

L_S_LQFJEI'[UFG? Date; 08/17/24
* Print or Type Name/Title:_Wiliiam Collins, Chairman, Town of Hudson Conservaton Commisison

* FORMS WITH ILLEGIBLY PRINTED NAMES WILL BE RETURNED

NOTE: An Original, Signed Application must be submitted, to include all maps,
labels, and support information. Two (2) complete copies must also be
submitted. In some cases applications, or portions thereof, may be
submitted electronically. Contact the Division of Pesticide Control to
determine the form in which documents may be submitted. Submit the
application to the address shown at the head of this form. Where
electronic copies will be allowed, the appropriate e-mail address will be
provided. Applications shall be processed in accordance with RSA 541-
A:29.

LLOW 60 DAYS FOR PROCESSI

This package contains (please check all that apply):

(W] Signed, dated, and completed application form with legible name(s)
[ Maps of appropriate scale containing all required information

(W] Copies of complete labels of pesticides being proposed

] All required lists of names and addresses



Musquash Conservation Area 030 WU 2000 Fue
Hudson, NH 2

=]
& AP Hambiett-Nash Traite

&= Turkey Trot Trail Third
/— Colburn Trail Swamp
& Deacon-Merrill Trail s
#9 Kingfisher Trail
/_ Meetinghouse Trail
& Whispering Pine Trail
/'- Nacook Loop
& Hidden Ridge Trail
&~ Unnamed Connector
Open Water
Streams
Wetlands e
===n= Sarvice Road Strazup Gmpia Bind
-—— Power Lines ; Camscrvition

Area
Symbols on trails indicate trail marker type
Teails datn from GPS and hand-digitized sources
20-foot contours dervied from USGS National Elevation Dataset

*Total of Hamblett-Nash trail is

approx. 2.4 miles from Musquash Rd
to Woodland Dr

Musquash
Swamp

" INVASIVE SPECIES

| 2 TREATMENT AREA
| ‘ Musquash
. ' Pond
Treatment
Area

Sources: USGS, ESRI, TANA, AND

Modified 15 August 2024: E.Radlof for Watershed Special Permit




Correspondence a1l:
SP APPLICATION-Watershed/Setback
Page 4 of 4
02/22

10. By the signature(s) below, the signatories attest that the information provided in this
application is accurate and true, and they acknowledge that falsification of
information will result in denial of a special permit.

Applicant (Person named under Line 1 of this form):

Signature: Date:
* Print or Type Name/Title: Eric Radlef-Full Circle Forestry, LLC

Pesticide Apblicator (From Line 2, if you have not already signed as the Applicant)
Signature: Date:

* Print or Type Name/Title;

Client (Person 'named on Line 3 of this fcy
A

Signature: /ﬁ%"‘/ %/; 4 Date: 08/17/24

* Print or Type Name/T itle:  William Coliins, Chairman, Town of Hudsan Conservaton Commisison

NOTE: An Original, Signed Application must be submitted, to include all maps,
labels, and support information. Two (2) complete copies must also be
submitted. In some cases applications, or portions thereof, may be
submitted electronically. Contact the Division of Pesticide Control to

determine the form In which documents may be submitted. Submit the
abplication to the address shown at the head of this form. Where

electronic copies will be allowed, the appropriate e-mail address will be
provided. Applications shall be processed in accordance with RSA 541-
A:29,

LL 0 DAYS FOR P SSING

This package contains (please check all that apply):

[W] Signed, dated, and completed application form with legible name(s)
(W] Maps of appropriate scale cantaining all required information

(W) Copies of complete labels of pesticides being proposed

] ANl required lists of names and addresses



8/16/24, 10:40 AM Checkout

Correspondence b:

' 0 (?(/contacs)car

Get 25% OFF + FREE Shipping*! PLUS, Ships in ONLY 24 Hours!™

Secure Checkout

1

. 1. Choose Shipping Method Choosing Your Delivery
" Method

S ——

Orders placed after 4PM CST are treated as if they were placed the
next day. All delivery options are in business days.

O Free! - Standard (get it by 08/26/2024)

@ Free! - Rush (get it by 08/23/2024)

O $75.00 - Express (2-3 Days) {get it by 08/21/2024)

O $84.38 - Expedited (get it by 08/20/2024)

(O Bilind Shipping what's This?

BILL TO: Edit (hitps://www.buildasign.com/onepagecheckout),

William Collins

5 Locust Street

Hudson, New Hampshire
03051

United States

SHIP TO: Edit (hitps://Awww.buildasign.com/onepagecheckout)

William Collins

5 Locust Street

Hudson, New Hampshire !
© 03051 |
| United States

—_— 4

4.6 Ydodokh
Google
Customer Reviews

hitps://www.buildasign.com/onepagesecurecheckout 1/4



8/16/24, 10:40 AM

Checkout

Order Summary
Original Total: $249.98
You Saved: ($62.48)
Cart Total: $187.50
Shipping: $0.00

Order Total: $187.50

Your Purchase is 100% Secure

(“ 2.3 VISA DISCOﬁ PayPal AM;;&;:S

Customer Sgtisfactior_l is Our #1_ I'friority _

2. Select Payment Method Payment Methods

Choose a way to pay

Card

| 4 PayPal

Secure Checkout

F-———--
i

https:/iwww.buildasign.com/onepagesecurecheckout

BACK (HTTPS://WWW.BUILDASIGN.COM/ONEPAGECHECKOQUT)

1
i

}

2/4



8/16/24, 10:40 AM Checkout

All designs submitted and all orders placed are final. By clicking "Secure
Checkout" below you agree that you have read and understand our Terms of
Sale.

' BACK (HTTPS://WWW.BUILDASIGN.COM/ONEPAGECHECKOUT)

{

Your Purchase is 100% Secure

RS -~

Customer Satisfaction is Our #1 Priority

All designs submitted and all orders placed are final. By clicking "Secure
Checkout" below you agree that you have read and understand our Terms of

Sale.
HELP + ACCOUNT + STAY +
CONNECTED
PRODUCTS COMPANY +
We gladly .
accept:
OUR . —_—
BRANDS @3
mﬂ p
NEED HELP?
CALL 1-800-330- +
9622

A Our friendly

] thitonee Customer

'WJ Love Team is
standing by to
answer any
questions you
may have,
Learn More »

(/customer-
love-team)

hitps:/iwww.buildasign.com/onepagesecurecheckout 3/4



8/16/24, 10:40 AM Checkout

*Free Standard Shipping promotions are valid for all products except metal
frames, brochure boxes, plywood, alumacore, aluminum composite material, 4ft
and larger corrugated plastic, and some large accessories. This offer is only
available within the contiguous United States and may not work with all other
promotional campaigns. Shipping discount will apply at checkout.

**'Ships Next Day" or "Ships in 24 Hours/Tomorrow" refers to business days and
applies to orders placed before 4PM CST. Orders after 4PM CST are treated as if
placed the next business day. These shipping options only apply within the
contiguous United States and includes all products except metal frames, apparel,
some marketing materials & tradeshow products, aluminum composite material,
orders over 500 quantity signs, and some large accessories.

Privacy Terms Accessibility Shipping Terms
Policy of Service (/accessibility) Policy of Sale
(/privacy) {/terms-of- (/shipping) (/terms-of-
service) sale)

Copyright © 2024 BuildASign. All rights reserved.

https://www.buildasign.cem/onepagesecurecheckout 4/4



NHDES-W-07-021

Correspondence c.

%, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Emo’ii%“?”m;l Application for Grant
Services Watershed Management Bureau

Exotic Agquatic Plant Control Grant Program

Voluntary

Applicant (if joint applicants, provide the information. specified for the additional applicant(s) on a
separate page):

Name: Town of Hudson, NH

Summer Mailing Address: Town of Hudson, Engineering Dept., 12 School St., Hudson, NH 03051

Winter Mailing Address: Town of Hudson, Engineering Dept., 12 School St., Hudson, NH 03051

Type of Entity (check one): L] Individual X Political subdivision [J Association L1 Private Business other legal entity

Applicants Point of Contact:

Name: Elvis Dhima, Town Engineer; or Doreena Stickney, Engineering Admin. Aide
Daytime Phone Number (include area code): 603-886-6008

Email Address (if any): edhima@hudsonnh.gov; dstickney@hudsonnh.gov

Grant Requested:
Estimate of Local Match: $ Apprax. $20,000

Desired Project Timeframe (season or months and year): Spring/Summer 2025

Waterbody:
Name: Robinson & Ottarnic Ponds Check one: & Public [J Private
Town(s): Town of Hudson, NH

Public Access Sites and Public Boat Access Areas (attach separate sheet if more room needed):

Town it Public Access Sites # Public Boat Access Areas
Ottarnic Pond 1 1
Robinson Pond 2 1

Predominant Use(s):

Return completed form to:
NHDES, ¢/o Amy Smagula
PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095
or email the completed form to Amy.Smagula@des.nh.gov
2020-01-29 Pagelof3



NHDES-W-07-021

1 Less than 30% of shorefront is developed
Surrounding land use mostly residential; boats are small motorized or unmotorized
O Surrounding land use mixed residential/transient; boats are large and small motorized or unmotorized

[J surface water is the source for a public water system (PWS name: Click or tap here to enter text.)

Information on Infestation(s} and Proposed Treatment: see next page

Return completed form to:
NHDES, ¢/o Amy Smagula
PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095
or email the completed form to Amy.Smagufa@des.nh.gov
2020-01-29 Page 2 of 3



NHDES-W-07-021

Certification:

On behalf of the applicant named above, | certify that:

¢ | am duly authorized to sign this application on behalf of the applicant; and
¢ The information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature and Date Signed:
Printed/Typed Name and Title: Elvis Dhima, P.E., Town Engineer, 8/20/24

Infestation and Treatment Information

(use additional sheet(s) if more than 4 infestations)

Exotic Aquatic Species: Fanwort, Milfoil

Location and Size: Robinsan Pond, 107 Acres

First appeared in prior 12 months? [J Yes X No

Impacts to Recreational and Commercial Uses: 1 day of no swimming
Impacts to Ecology: None

Proposed Control(s): Herbicide Treatment and/or DASH work as needed

Exotic Aquatic Species: Fanwort, Milfoil

Location and Size: Ottarnic Pond, 38.45 Acres

First appeared in prior 12 months? [J Yes X No

Impacts to Recreational and Commercial Uses: 1 day of no swimming
Impacts to Ecolagy: None

Proposed Control(s): Herbicide Treatment and/or DASH work as needed

Exotic Aquatic Species: Click or tap here to enter text.

Location and Size: Click or tap here to enter text.

First appeared in prior 12 months?.[] Yes [1 No

Impacts to Recreational and Commercial Uses: Click or tap here to enter text.
Impacts to Ecology: Click or tap here to enter text.

Proposed Control(s): Click or tap here to enter text.

Exotic Aquatic Species: Click or tap here to enter text,

Location and Size: Click or tap here to enter text.

First appeared in prior 12 months? [J Yes [1 No

Impacts to Recreational and Commercial Uses: Click or tap here to enter text.
Impacts to Ecology: Click or tap here to enter text.

Proposed Control(s): Click or tap here to enter text.

Return completed form to:
NHDES, c/o Amy Smagula
PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095
or emaif the completed form to Amy.Smagula@des.nh.gov
2020-01-29

Page3of3



TOWN OF HUDSON

Conservation Commission

William Collins, Chairman Dave Morin, Selectmen Liaison

12 School Street * Hudson, New Hampshire 03051 * Tel: 603-886-6008 * Fax: 603-816-1291

DATE: August 12,2024

MEETING MINUTES: Below is a listing of minutes for the Hudson Conservation Commission.
Minutes are not a verbatim record of each meeting, but rather represent a summary of the discussion
and actions taken at the meeting. All Conservation Commission meetings are televised live and
repeated during the following week on HCTYV, cable television channel 22. Cfficial copies of the
minutes are available to read and copy at the Town Engineer's Office during regular business hours
(Monday through Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M.).

Should you have any questions concerning these minutes or wish to sec the original recording, please
contact the Town Engineer's Office at 603-886-6008.

In attendance = X Alternates Seated =S  Partial Attendance =P Excused Absence =E

William Collins Carl Murphy Ken Dickinson Brian Pinsonneault
Chairman _ X Vice-Chair _E Clerk __X (arrived 7:03) Member _ X

John Walter Linda Krisciunas David Morin Elvis Dhima
Member _ X Alternate_ X Selectman Rep _ P (arrived 8:15) Town Engineer _X
Chris Cameron

Alternate_ X

CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRPERSON AT 07:01 P.M.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

SEATING OF ALTERNATES:

Linda Krisciunas was seated for Mr. Dickinson and Chris Cameron was seated for Carl Murphy.

Public Input Related to Non-Agenda Items: none



IL

a.

New Business:

Conditional Use Permit Application Discussion, Brox Industries Expansion:

Mr. Bruce Gilday, CWS of BAG Land Consulting, Scott Riley (Operations Manager, Brox
Industries) and Erik Stevenson (VP of Real Estate, Brox Industries) were present to represent
the applicant Brox Industries, 85 Greeley St. Map136, Lot 1 for the proposed expansion of
their existing quarry. As a result of the NHDES review process, the project now proposes to
impact (remove) 2.11 acres of wetlands. Mr. Gilday repeated the vernal pool studies and
found that the largest wetland contained approx. 8 fairy shrimp and a stand of Buttonbush
shrubs. The applicant is prepared to contribute monetary funds into the ARM (Aquatic
Resource Management) fund; however, Mr. Gilday will present a “shovel ready” project to
the NHDES. Mr. Pinsonneault reiterated that it is critical that the required impact fees are
used for a local project within the Town of Hudson. This project was discussed for
approximately 35 minutes. Joanne Dowd (President, Highland Woods Condominium
Association, 20 Glasgow St.) stated that the Association is concerned with blasting activities
and potential groundwater contamination that would result from the quarry expansion. Mr.
Dhima explained that there would be no significant impact as the proposed impacts are
substantially lower than the elevation of the wetland complex present on the opposite side of
Greeley St.

A site walk was scheduled for Thursday, August 15, 2024 at 6:30pm to review the two largest
wetlands (Area A and Area J). The other wetland areas reviewed during the 2023 site walk
have already been removed.

Old Business:

Conditional Use Permit Application, Miara Transportation Expansion:

Mrs. Allison Lewis, of Keach Nordstrom Associates was present to represent the applicant
Miara Transportation, 12 Bockes Rd. Map136, Lot 1 for the proposed expansion of their
existing facility. The project proposes to construct a 9600 SF trailer storage garage with
attached 3600 SF awning in the rear of the property. The revised site plan, dated August 8,
2024, repositioned the building to the NE corner of the property which results in a reduction
of wetland impacts and further protects existing well water. Wetland Buffer Impact Area was
reduced to 830 SF (>75% reduction) and Temporary Wetland Buffer Impact Area was
reduced to 3,033 SF (>50% reduction) The revised plans also included the following
requested revisions from both the previous site walk and engineering dept. review as
previously discussed: additional drainage swale, repositioned maple tree plantings, and
double silt fence. After a short discussion, all members found the application to be
acceptable.

Mr. Walter moved to recommend the application for approval.

Mr. Pinsonneault seconded the motion.

The motion passed 4-0-1 (Chris Cameron abstained as he is a new member).

Chairman Collins to provide the formal written decision for record.



III.

IV,

VI.

Other Business:

Budget 2025/2026 FY

Chairman Collins inquired if there were any new items to discuss for the new budget cycle. There
was no input from other members; however, Mr. Collins mentioned that the HCC may consider the
creations of an outreach flyer for the Robinson Pond Improvement Project or trail signs. Mr. Dhima
mentioned that it is possible create an annual item for Poison Ivy/Invasive Species treatment or
increase funding for these professional services. Mr. Dickinson was interested in hiring Full Circle
Forestry to conduct forestry operations to maintain and create more views along our trails. This item
was discussed for approx. 12 minutes and will be revisited during the September regular meeting.

. Trail Work Day — 68 Pelham Road and Musquash (Hamblett-Nash Trail):

Trail Work Day is scheduled for September 14% and 15% from 8am-12pm in effort to prune
invasive shrubs and remove fallen trees from 68 Pelham Road lot and along the Hamblett-Nash
Trail located in the Musquash Conservation Area.

HCC 2024/2025 Trail Improvement Activities List:

Chairman Collins asked the commission if there was other items to add to the list of potential trail
improvement projects. Mr. Walter mentioned that Mr. Murphy wants to remove the tree at 68 Pelham
Road. Mr. Pinsonneault is looking forward to marking out new trails on the Rangers property. Ms.
Krisciunas is also looking forward to completing trail markings and signage at Musquash and other
conservation properties within Hudson.

. Picnic on the Pond Event:

After a brief discussion regarding event planning, Chairman Collins announced that this
event will take place at the Musquash Pond parking lot from 11am-1pm on September 7,
2024 with Ryan Friedman from NRPC presenting his new maps and trail software, Mr.
Collins will purchase some food and drinks for the event.

Financial Status:

First financial summary of FY 2025 (July monthly update) was reviewed.

Mr. Dickinson requested clarification for the $8,100 professional services line item last month.
$795,000 approx. is currently available in the Conservation Fund.

Correspondence:
Chairman Collins reviewed our monthly correspondence which included the following:
a) Full Circle Forestry Invoice for Knotweed Cutting and Removal = $625.
b) NH Fish and Game Trapping Permit (for Fisher Cat study)
Chairman Collins provided a signoff pending a future presentation on the findings of this study.

Approval of Minutes:
Meeting minutes for both July 8, 2024 and July 25, 2024 were accepted.
Motion by Mr. Pinsonneault to accept minutes; seconded by Mr. Walter.

Motion Carried 4/0/1



VIL

VIIL

Commissioner’s Comments:

Mr. Walter mentioned that there was a good discussion at last month’s ZORC meeting regarding a new
zoning district that would replace the General district with a rural Residential district. Mr. Dickinson and
Mr. Collins also provided input. Mr. Cameron asked several questions regarding our zoning ordinance
and wetland setbacks. A brief discussion followed regarding this item which was discussed under the
Correspondence portion of the meeting.

Mr. Dhima informed the HCC that an update to the proposed Robinson Pond boat launch improvements
will be presented at our next regular September meeting. The grant invitation will occur prior to the HCC
September regular meeting. Application is due in November and requires BOS approval. The HCC will
need to review several items including the request for a boundary line and topographical survey and
provide recommendations as necessary.

Ms. Krisciunas asked for more detail in our monthly budget database with focus on professional services.

Mr. Pinsonneault reminded everyone that Archery hunting season opens on 9/15/24 and duck hunting
opens on 10/9/24,

Mr. Cameron noted that he will be away the second weekend of September.
Mr. Collins noted that we recently were listed on an abutter notification for an extension of a multi-family
use application. Mr. Cameron asked a few questions regarding this application which Mr. Collins

clarified.

Mr. Dickinson offered the clerk position to another member if there’s sufficient interest, as he is inundated
with work and traveling out of state on a regular basis.

Motion to adjourn:
Mr. Walter moved to adjourn our regular meeting at 8:54 PM; seconded by Mr. Pinsonneault.

Motion Carried 5/0/0

Kewn Dickinsow

Ken Dickinson, Clerk



